CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Greenman, Jouron, LembKlez&tek, and Hayden were present.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise téhga?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attenda
in the Pledge.

Latika Bhide and Elizabeth Maxwell, both Plannersre present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting is being tskedinow as well as being recorded for future plelyba
on the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 20, 2012 SPECIAL PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Skluzacek moved to approve the minutes fromAtgust 20, 2012 Special Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Jouron secbtieé motion. On roll call, Batastini, Esposito,
Gavle, Greenman, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Haydenay®e Members Lembke and Goss abstained.
Motion passed.

2012-48 FOLEY — 274 Midlane- PUBLIC HEARING
This petitioner was continued from the August 2 2 Special PZC meeting.
Variation to allow a brick paver patio to encrodch feet into the required 5-foot setback.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Gladys Foley was present to represent her petitMs. Foley apologized for not checking into pobsib
needing a permit for the patio. She said thatesfirst outside project she did on her home. BRidey
said she is requesting a variation from the siad gatback for the patio. Since her home is coraer

lot there is not much room in the back yard. Tlad wf her neighbor’'s home has only one windowton i
that faces the patio and they have not complained.

Mr. Hayden asked if the petitioner has any conceiitis the recommended conditions listed on page 3
of the staff report. Ms. Foley said she has ndlgms with them.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 2

Mr. Goss did a quick calculation and the housedalgeabout 80% of the lot area.
Mr. Esposito said he lives on a corner lot and ustdeds the problems with placing a patio.
Mr. Skluzacek, Mrs. Lembke, and Mr. Jouron saig/tlvere ok with the request.

Mr. Gavle asked if the neighbor had commented erptitio. Mrs. Foley said she spoke with them and
they don’t have a problem with it.

Mr. Hayden said when they look at the surroundimigditions of the property; the shape of the lot can

be classified as a hardship. Ms. Maxwell saidptiio could have been made 1.5 feet smaller ompait
different location to meet the required setbacke Said there are always problems with corner lots.

Mr. Hayden said a similar request was approvedvaygsars ago and he has no problem with the request.
Mr. Esposito moved to approve the variation fromidde 3-200 of the UDO to allow a brick paver patio
to encroach 1.4 feet into the required 5-foot ammgsstructure setback from the side yard setbadk a

be as close as 3.6 feet from the side propertyeir#y4 Midlane with the following conditions:

1. Approved plan, to reflect staff and advisorydgoeomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application (Foley, received 07/06/12)
B. Plat of Survey/Site Plan (Brauer Land Surveyoteged 12/13/1991, received 06/08/12)

2. Avariation to allow the encroachment into thguired 5-foot accessory structure side yard sktiac
1.4 feet for a brick paver patio is granted.

3. No structure shall be constructed on the patitase.

4. The petitioner shall comply with all of the réguments of the Engineering and Building, and
Planning and Economic Development Departments.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll callimembers voted aye. Motion passed.

2012-91 HARKINS — 73 Lincoln Pkwy— PUBLIC HEARING
Special Use Permit and Variations for a new 2,8fage foot garage.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 3

Redmond Harkins was present to represent his reqis Harkins said he currently has a 24 fooOx 3
foot garage and wants to replace it with a garhgeis 10 feet longer with a second floor and a
basement. He does not have a problem with thees¢qo change the dormer to 2-8 foot dormers. Mr.
Harkins said the reason for the size of the gaiagecause the home is very old and has very little
storage area including closets. His basementi@ddés which does not allow for storage in that area

Mr. Hayden asked if the petitioner had any conceritis the recommended conditions listed in thefstaf
report. Mr. Harkins said no.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Batastini said the plans show for a bathroorthenbasement of the garage. Mr. Harkins said yes.
Mr. Batastini asked if the garage would be heatetiar air conditioned. Mr. Harkins said it would b
heated but not air conditioned. Mr. Batastini ghid property is about a %2 acre and the garageaapp
to be similar to the neighbor to the north. Helsaith the plumbing and heating it feels more ke
house.

Mr. Jouron asked if there will be a business indhHmecause of the size. Mr. Harkins said no. Mr.
Jouron said he is concerned with the size.

Mr. Esposito said this is considerably larger thdrat is allowed by ordinance and can’t supporfTihis
is more like a commercial structure.

Mr. Batastini asked what the approximate size ®fcar garage is. Ms. Maxwell said approximately
800 square feet.

Mr. Gavle is impressed with the detail of the dragvprovided. He is concerned with the close
proximity of the garage to the property line. Itlwe hard to dig the hole required for the foutola

and basement and not have some of the neighbaodscgiiapse into the hole. Mr. Gavle would prefer
that it be moved away from the lot line since tbhaent garage will be removed completely. He asked
how does the City control people living in the “gge”. Ms. Maxwell said the City acts on complaints
Mr. Gavle said he can’t support the side yard Viama

Mr. Jouron asked why not move the garage to meetetback requirements since the current garage
will be removed. Mr. Harkins said it's a very masrlot and he does not want to look out his back
window and see the large garage.

Mr. Skluzacek said he normally doesn’t have a mablvith a garage of this size but can’t support the
side yard variation. He feels it should be moveero Mr. Skluzacek also believes that someonehwill
living in the garage.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 4

Mrs. Lembke said she can’t approve the side yandtan. She asked if there would be windows i th
basement. Mr. Harkins said yes for egress.

Mr. Greenman asked what the size of the home is.Hdrkins said it is approximately 2,000 square
feet. Mr. Greenman asked how long they have lthede. Mr. Harkins said about 16 years. Mr.
Greenman said they have seen many larger garage#lyeand agrees with the additional storage but
not this size. He understands the need but henddbmk of this as a garage because of the sMe.
Greenman said he is not in favor of this petition.

Mr. Goss said this is not the typical resident@struction with steel beams and poured concrelis.wa
This doesn’t seem to be a normal accessory steibtcause of its size, a basement, and plumbing.

Mr. Hayden agreed. He said the compelling commestthat the petitioner didn’t want to meet the
required setback because he didn’t want to lookh@uback window and see the large garage. Hé can’
support the request. The size and the construat®wout of place. Mr. Hayden said this proposed
garage is more than 500 square feet larger thamvbistory Colonial home. He is also concerned tha
the garage has plumbing as well as heat. He tlieglsvith this type of storage building sprinklers
should be required because of all of the combwestitiiat would be stored in it.

Mr. Jouron asked if the floor would be strong erotay the weight. Ms. Maxwell said that is not
usually looked at until it goes through the perpntgcess.

Mr. Hayden said a number of the Findings of Faetraat met.

Mr. Esposito moved to deny the requested SpecaRésmit and Variations at 73 Lincoln Parkway. @oss
seconded the motion. On roll call members EspoGivle, Goss, Greenman, Jouron, Skluzacek, anddtiay
voted aye. Members Batastini and Lembke votedMotion to deny passed.

2012-93 KNIGHTSBRIDGE COMMERCIAL - TRAMPOLINE PARK - 5593 Northwest Hwy.—
PUBLIC HEARING
Special Use Permit for a trampoline amusement park.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Vikas Sharma and Mandeep Sidhu were present tegept the petition. Mr. Sidhu said they are
basically a trampoline amusement park. There gpeoximately 130 in the United States with 5 in the
Chicago area. They are requesting a Special Useitfer the approximately 25,000 square foot
facility. Mr. Sidhu said the property has beenarddor about 4 years and they hope this will start
revitalize the area.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 5

Mr. Sharma said the closest trampoline business@irnee and this use will attract people from all
over. That will bring more business to other Cajytiake businesses.

Mr. Sidhu said they will be serving limited amounfdood. Mr. Sharma said they will have more l&ke
Starbuck’s café — type food service.

Mr. Sidhu said they reviewed the Findings of Faxt believe they meet all of the conditions for a
Special Use Permit. They also don’t have any mmoislwith the recommended conditions in the Staff
Report. Mr. Sidhu said they have met with represtérgs from the City several times at the site and
know what the City will require for the permittipgocess.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Jouron asked about the hours of operation. 3tarma said during the week the hours will ber afte
school from about 3 p.m. to 10 p.m. and weekendw@ifrom 9 or 10 a.m. to midnight. He added that
the facility can be rented for exercise classeereeghey open for regular business during weekdays.

Mr. Jouron asked if there are pits under the trdmes. Mr. Sharma said the trampolines are radstx
5 feet off of the floor with the frames being attad to the floor. He said the frames are custoith fou
a space. Mr. Jouron asked if there will be sepasgas for the various age groups. Mr. Sharnaa sai
they will have inflatables for the younger childrempproximately 3 to 7 years old. Mr. Jouron dske
about supervision. Mr. Sharma said they will ha2el4 employees who will be trained. Mr. Sidhu
said their big thing is safety and everyone wha el on the equipment will watch a video as wellhaes
parents signing a waiver. Mr. Sharma said thelieb@ia seating area for the parents who wishayp st
and watch.

Mr. Gavle said the hours of operation presentdbiatmeeting are different than what was in thekpac
they received. Mr. Sharma said the hours havéeen finalized. Mr. Gavle said he supports this
request.

Mr. Esposito said it sounds like fun. He suggest&Edg Jimmy Johns to cater parties since thegare
close.

Mr. Skluzacek said this is a good idea. Mrs. Leenb#id it sounds like fun.

Mr. Greenman said he supports the request. HelalSkee petitioners own or operate other facisitie
Mr. Sharma said no. Mr. Sidhu said their childgerto similar facilities. Mr. Greenman said the
petitioners have done their homework so they kndwatvis involved. He asked if the petitioners il
running the business or will they hire someone. $dhu said they will be running the businesseyrh
want to be very active in it. Mr. Greenman saigl lttcation is great — near TORA and using large
vacant spaces.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 6

Mr. Goss asked if there are cross access agreefetht® parking lot. Ms. Bhide said yes. Mr. Goss
said this needs to be cleaned up. Mr. Sharmatiseydwill need probably 30 to 40 parking spaces on
the weekends. Mr. Goss asked if the frames arecsed to the floor. Mr. Sidhu said yes. Mr. Goss
said this meets the Findings of Fact.

Mr. Hayden said there was no discussion regardgrage for this use therefore the petitioner waled
to meet the requirements of our Sign Ordinance. Swthu said they may need a different sign in the
future and may need to come back before the PZG#agdCouncil for approval.

Mr. Hayden said he read the letter from Simon migagrthis use. Mr. Sidhu said Simon is ok with the
use but they need to get the final approval froeirtbhareholders. He believes it is just a fortypali

Mr. Goss moved to approve a Special Use Permiupunitso Article 2, Land Use of the Unified
Development Ordinance to allow a trampoline amusepark as a special use in the “B-2 PUD”
district for Trampoline Park at 5593 Northwest Higly with the following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorgfobrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application, Project Description, Photos, re@s\8-16-12

B. Suite Layout, received 8-16-12

2. A special use for the proposed use classifieédllagther amusement & recreation facilities’ hist
location is granted.

3. If the facility is expanded in area or intensthe petitioner shall be required to seek a SUP
amendment.

4. The petitioner will contact the McHenry Countgath Department to obtain any necessary
permits for food being served at this location.

5. All proposed signage must meet the provisiom&ro€le 4-1000 Signs of the UDO or the PUD
approval, as applicable. Permits through the Bogddivision must be obtained for all signs.

6. The petitioner shall replace any dead and digindscaping in the immediate vicinity of their
tenant space, including the areas of the parkinglésest to the tenant space.

7. The petitioner is responsible for meeting allding, plumbing, electrical, and sprinkler
requirements as identified by the Building and Rescue Departments.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 5, 2012
PAGE 7

8. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building, Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, andnhing and Economic Development
Departments.

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callp@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.

REPORT FROM PLANNING

- The Living Room-Crush Club — 446 W. Virginia -g8iVariation
- Schanz — 323 Poplar St. — Special Use Permit

- UDO Amendment

Ms. Bhide reviewed the petitions for the next PZ&eting.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION

Mr. Goss said the parking lot at Crystal Court rsetedbe looked at. If it were one unit and redeped,
it would help the tenants. Mr. Esposito said thigrobably the worst parking lot layout in theyCitMr.

Jouron recalled the conceptual plan they reviewitvayears ago. Ms. Bhide said the City is ushag t
plan showing potential developers what the Cityson for this area. She said one of the challenge
that there are so many owners that are involvedisncenter. Mr. Goss said he would like the issue
raised at Council.

Mr. Hayden said the car care center across fromeédbepot has a large EMC sign that is constantly
changing the copy. Mr. Goss recalled that it wa$ pf the Annexation Agreement. Mr. Hayden asked
if staff could check into the Annexation Agreemantl when it expires so the time limit for copy
change can be implemented on this sign.

Mr. Batastini asked about the parking of largeboiérd-type trucks. Mr. Goss asked if a limit coloéd
placed on vehicles like that which are parked offpises. Mr. Batastini asked if it could be adtted
the UDO.

Mr. Batastini moved to request the City Councihtve staff look into an amendment the UDO to limit
the trucks with advertisements from parking offrprges. Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On voice
vote, all members voted aye. Motion passed.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.



